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When we think of sugar, we instantly
think of added sweetness. However, this
amazing product, its properties ond
by-products will surprise you,

INTTOdUCHON [t tei

g g {., -~ balance Havours, for instance the

-~ paradox of bitter sweel; it makes sour

. ' Havours more palatable; it intensifies
saltiness.

Sugar is @ preservative and makes foods
lost longer retaining food values, colour

and freshness.

Sugar can also alter the chemical
processes of non - food items. It is widely
used in the construction and film
industries.

From our first preduction 47 years age to
the final bag of every crushing season,
we at Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills take pride
in every gain of sugar produced. We are
henoured fo be manufacturers of one of
the cldest and widest used commedities
in the world.

Mirpurkhas Sugar
Mills Limited

&, Ghulam Fonuyes Group Company
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alters flavours

Sugar creates a flavour change in sweet

food products such as biscuits, chocolates,
I beverages, cakes, efc.
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fresher for longer

A spoonful of sugar helps flowers to stay
fresher for longer when added to their water.







boiling & treezing points

Sugar raises the boiling point or lowers the
freezing point in certain recipes, for
example, ice cream.







slowly and surely

Sugar is added to concrete to slow
down the sefting process.






VISIOnN

We aim to be a leading producer and supplier
of high quality sugar in Pakistan. We aspire fo
be known for the quality of our product. We
intend to play a pivolal role in the economic

and social development of Pakisian thereby
improving the quality of life of its people.
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MISSION

As o leading producer of quality sugar
in Pakistan, we shall build on our core
competencies and achieve excellence in

performance. In doing so, we dim o meet or
exceed the expectations of all our stakeholders.

In striving o serve our stokeholders better,

our goal is not only lo altain technological
advancements in the field of sugar technology,
but also to inculcate the mast efficient, ethical
and fime tested business practices in our

management.,

We shall continue to lock for innovative ways fo
intraduce alternate uses of sugar to broaden our
customer base,







sirategic objectives

Effective use of resources and management of operaling cost:

® [ffeciive use of resources and optimized copacity utilization;

®  Modemization of production focilities o ensure the most efficient
processing of sugar cane and better sucrose recovery;

® Suslaining costs, based on sirong skills of confinuous improvement in
operations, development and implementation of effective technical
solutions;

e Further improvement in corporate governance through optimization
of manogement processes.

Development of sugar cane and growth in sugar and allied

businessas:

® Active parficipotion in developing new varieties of sugar cone in
adjoining areas;
®  Search for growth opportunities for existing business through siralegic

ocquisiions and establishing partnerships in prospective sectors of
urg:rﬂnd allied industry. e aeibic

Sustainable development in the region in which the Company
operates:

® Personnel development, creating a proper environment for growth
of high;y skillad professionals, ensuring safe labor environmant,
compelitive staff remuneration and social benefits in accordance
with the scopa and quality of their work;

®  Compliance with environmental standards, both local and at the
international level;

. I;I‘;I.p:ng urur:IITimpla'rmlirg projects that lead fo sociol and economic

communilios.







core Values

Strive for excellence and build on our core
competencies.

*  Keep up with technologicol advancements and
confinuously update ourselves in the field of sugar
technology.

*  Meet & exceed the expeciations of our stakeholders.

® Inculcate efficient, sthical and time tested business
practices in our management.

*  ‘Work as a team and support each other.

®  Keep the interest of the Company before that of the
individual.
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notice of annual general meeting

Matice is herely given that the 47th Anmeal General Meeling of the Company will be held on Tuesdoy,
Jonuary 31, 2012 at 3:00 p.m. ot the Ragisiersd Offica of tha Company at Madem Malors Houss,
Beaumont Road, Karochi, lo transoct the following business:

1. To receive and consider the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended Septembaer 30,
2011 ond tha Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon,

2. To consider and approve the payment of cash dividend @10% [Re. 1 per share) for the finoncial year
ended Seplember 30, 2011 s recommended by the Boord of Direcors.

3. To opprove the isvonce of bonus shares @15% i.e. in the ratio of 15 bonus shares for every hundred
[100) shares hele.

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2011,/12 and to fixt their remuneration,
5. To transact any obher businass with the parmission of tha Chair.

By Order of the Board of Direciors

Abid A Vazir
Karachi; December 15, 2011 Executive Director & Company Secrekary

Ordinary Business - Item no. 3
It is proposed that the following resolufion be possed with regard 1o the issuonce of boms shares:

Resobved thot o sum of Rs. 12,649,824/~ be copilolized out of the unopproprialed profits of the
Company for the year 201011 lo isswe of por 1,264,982 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. Such shares
shall be distribubed as bonus shares ko those members whosa names appear in the regisier of membars
of the Company on January 16, 2012 @ 15% (15 shores for every 100 shares held); thot fhe new shares
shall rank pari passu with the existing shores of the Company for oll purpases; that frochion shares arising
therack shall be disreqardad and whola shares represanting such froctions shall be disposad off in such
manner as the Directors of the Campany think fit and the proceeds shall be distributed in due proporion
among the members of the Company enlifled therelo in accordance with their respective rights; that the
Directors be and are hereby outhorized to sign the new share certificates and the common seol of the
Company may be offixed in the presence of any two Directors; that the Directors be ond are hereby
authorized ko give effect 1o this resoluion and ko do oll such octs, deeds ond things that may be
necassary or required for the issuance, ollolment or distribution of ordinary shares.
Status of Investment in Unicol Limited

The Company had obigined the approval of its shareholders for investment of R, 128,67 million in Unicol
Limised. Keeping in view the financiol requirements of Unicol Limited and the availability of credit focilites
from banks, the Company has so for invested Rs. 104,99 million only. The remaining ameunt will be
invested by Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limiled [MSM) as and when required by Unicol Limited.



NOTES:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closad from Tuesday, January 17, 2012 o Tuesday,
Jonwary 31, 2012 [both days inclusive] ond no transhers will be registened during thot fime. Shares received
at the office of the Share Registror of the Company M/s. Ceniral annil?ri:mpuny of Pakistan, CDC Housa,
208, Block ‘B, 5.M.CH.5., Main Shohroh-aFaisal, Korochi af the close of business on Monday, January 14,
2012 will be frected in fime for the enfilement of 10% cosh dividend and 15% bonus shores. The payment of
dividend will be made on the existing paidup capital of Rs. 84,332,140/,

2. A member of the Company eligible to attend and vote o the Annual General Meeting may appoint anather
member as his/her proxy o oflend and vobe in his/her sead. Proxies ko be effedive must be in writing and
must be received by the Company 48 hours before the meeting.

3. The shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their occount/sub-occount with Central
Dapasitary System [CDS) are requasted to bring original computerized MNational Idantity Card along with thair
account number in CDS and parficipant’s 1D numbser for verification. In case of oppointment of prosy by such
account holders and subaccount holdars, the guidelines as contained in the SECP s circular of 24th January
2000 ore 1o be kllowed.

4, Tha sharshcldars of the Company ore requasied o immediately nafify amy changs in their oddresses ko cur
share registrar M/'s. Central Depository Compony of Pokistan, CDC House, 998, Block 'B’, 5.M.C H.5., Main
Shahrah-eFoisal, Karochi.




UNIGOL ~

UNICOL LIMITED

The Company

Unicol Limited, a public unquated company, is a joint venture with shares equally
held among Faran Sugar Mills, Mehran Sugar Mills and Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills.
All three companies are listed on the different Stock Exchanges of Pakistan.

Unicol commenced its operations in August 2007 and is producing ethanol from
sugor cane molasses. The plant is located ot Mirpurkhas, Sindh on a 98 ocre plot
and has designed copacity of 100,000 liters or 80 metric tons per day. The plant
is designed by Maguin Interis, France [www.maguin.com) and the Bio Gas plant
is designed by Proserpol, France [www.proserpol.com|; both these companies
are well recognized in their respective fields.



Presently 100% of Unicol's ethanal is being exporfed with the majority destined for
European markets. Unicol is presently in the process of being registered os a "CDM
project’.

Unicol, being part of economic development and providing employment in Pakistani
rural areas, ensures the compliance of all health, sofety, and environmental laws
and procedures,

Products

Unicel can produca different grades of sthanel, including ENA Anhydrous

99.9%). ENA [>94%) and B grade [>92%). The ethanol produced by Unicol

has various uses in different indusiries like pharmaceuticals, air resheners (cerosols),
cleaning products, perfumes, parsonal care products, printing inks, fabric sofieners,
vinegar and yeast, paints and vamish, art fuel, preserving ogents and chemical
manufacturing.




the board of directors

Mr. Mahmood Faruque
Chairman

Mr. Mahmood Faruque is Chairman of the Company. He is also
a Director of Cherat Packoging Uid and Greaves Pakistan [Pvt.) Lid.

For over 45 years Mr. Mahmood Faruque served as a member
of the Board of Direciors of Mew Jubilee Insurance Co. Lid. He
wos appointed fo serve os a member of the Privatization
Commission of Pakisian.

Mr. Aslom Foruque
Chief Executive

Mr. Aslam Faruque is a groduate from the University of Pacific,
Stockion, USA, with a major in Marketing. He is the Chief Executive
of Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Lid and Unicol Lid. He is on the Board of
Directors of Cherat Packaging Lid, State Life Insurance Corporation
of Pakistan, Greaves Pakistan (Pv.) Uid, Greaves Aircondifioning
[Pvt.) Lid and Zensolt [Pvt.) Lid. In the past, he has served as the
Chairman of Pakistan Sugar Mills Association = Sindh Zone, and
Director of Sui Southern Gas Company Lid as well as Pakistan
Indusirial Development Corporation.




Mr. Mohammed Faruque
Director

Mr. Mchammed Faruque is the Chairman of Cherat Packaging Lid,
Cherat Cement Co. Uid and Greaves Pakistan (Pvt.] lid. He is a
member of Board of Directors of Associoted Constructors (Pvt.) Lid.

In the past, Mr. Mohommed Farugue has served on the Boards of
prestigious orgonizations like Sui Southern Gas Co. id and Aflas
Insurance Lid as Director.

Mr. Tariq Foruque
Director

Mr. Tariq Faruque graduated from Case Western Reserve University,
USA. He holds a dual major in Economics and Political Science. He
is a Director of Faruque [Pvt.) Lid, Greaves Pakistan [Pv.) Lid, Greaves
Airconditioning (Pvt.) Uid, Zensoft [Pvt.) lid, Madian Hydro Power Lid
and Unicol Lid. Mr. Tarig Faruque is also a Member of the Board of
Directors of Oil and Gas Development Company as well as serving
on the Board of Governors of Marie Adelaide Leprosy Cenfre.




the board of directors

Mr, Akbarali Pesnani
Dhrechor

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani is an MBA and a fellow member of both

the Institute of Chartered Accountants and Institute of Cost and
Management Accountants of Pakistan. He has served as Chairman
Gwadar Port and Gwadar Port Implementation Authority from 2004
to 2006. Mr. Pesnani has been associated with the Aga Khan
Development Network at senior level for over 35 years. Presently,
he is the Chairman of First Micro Finance Bank Ud and Aga Khan
Cultural Service Pakistan and is a Director on the Board of New
Jubilee Insurance Co. Uid. His association with the Ghulam Faruque
Group goes back almost 30 years. He currently serves on the Board
of Directors of Cherat Cement Co. Ud, Cherat Packaging Lid,
Greaves Pakistan [Pv.) Ud and Greaves CNG [Pvi.) Lid.

Mr. Arif Farugque
Diractor

Mr. Arif Faruque is a Swiss - qualif‘iﬂr_l Attorney-atlow and also
holds masier degrees in both low and business administrafion from
the USA. He is the Chairman of Maersk Pokistan and the Chief
Executive of Faruque (Pvi.) Lid as well as Madian Hydro Power Lid.
He is on the Board of Directors of Cherat Cement Co. lid, Cherat
Packaging lid, Greaves Pakistan [Pvt) Lid, Zenscft (Pvt.) Lid and IGI
Invesiment Bank Lid. Besides the above, he is a member of the Board
of Govemaors of Lahore University of Manogement Sciences.




Mr. Magbool H.H. Rahimtoola
Direcior

Mr, Magbool Rahimtoola, joined the Board of MSM in 1999 as the NIT
nominee. Mr, Rahimioola graduated from McGill University, Canada in
Ell.mnm and prasently serves on the Boards of Barger Paints Pakistan Lid,
ing Enterprises Ud, PIDC, and Dadex Etemit Lid. He is currently
Bnndmmvuz (Pvt) Lid.

M., Enhtmmh has been o Caretaker Technocrat Minister in Sindh for
11 Ministries and Chairman of Lakhra Coaol Development Authaority,
Sindh Small Industries Corporation, Karachi Transport Authority, Sindh
Coal Authority, Sindh Employees Social Security. He is also a Former
Member Board of Governars of Korachi Development Authority and
the Sindh Wildlife Management Boord,

Mr. Muhammad Igbal Hussain
Direcior

MR. Muhammad Igbal Hussain, currently on the Board of SaudiPak
Leasing Co., is Masters in Economics, Postgraduate Diploma in
Development Finonce and M.5¢. in Defence and Strategic Studies.

He has served in various positions from Section officer 1o Senior Jain!
Secretary (1972-2008) in Government of Pakistan in different Ministries
and Corporations such as the Minisiry of Finance, Ministry of Industries
Production and PTDC.

Mr. Hussain has also served on the Board of such companies as PACO,
MNFC, HBFC, NIT, Saudi Pak Inv, Co.

Mr. Tauhique Habib
Diracior

Mr. Taufique Hobib is o graduate of the University of Karachi. He has a rich
work experience extending over 37 years in different Nafional & Mullinafional
companies in Pakistan. He is currently also serving on the Board of The Hub
Power Company Lid, Golden Amow Selecied Stocks Fund Lid, Pakistan
Reinsurance Company Lid as an independently elected Director.

From 2002 to 2005, he has abso served on the Board of Directors of Shell
Pokistan Limited as independently elected direcior.

He has attended all prescribed courses of the Code of Corporate Governance
conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance [FICG).




directors’ report fo the members

for the year ended September 30, 2011

The Board of Directors place before you the annual report of the Company
together with the audited accounts for the year ended September 30, 2011.

Dhvarviiw

Sugar cane planiation and crop improved during the season 2010/11 as the coundry hod o iolal
sugar production of 4. 1 million melric fons, High price hixed by tha Sindh Govemmeant for the season
and compefition for cone amongst the sugar mills resuled in substanfial increase in price of sugar
cana and hanca the cosl of production during the year 2010/1 1. However, the ovailability of sugar
remnained safishociony for the year.




Operohng p-qrfuq'mum;l:l

Your Company crushed 509,204 metric tons of sugarcane o produce 56,681 meric tons of sugar
inchuding 3,688 metric tons of sugar from imported row sugar during its 144 days of operotion. This
compares lavorably from last season when the Company crushed 455,129 meiric lons of sugar cone

ko produce 48,202 melric kons sugar during 122 days il cperaked. During the season under reviaw,

the sucrosa recovery wos 10.41%. In ity efforts to further impreve its oparational efficiencies and increase
production volumes, the Company during the year had undercken several measures invalving major
copéial expenditures because of which improvemants were witnessed in various kery areas of the fnclory
operations, During the year undear review, the Company sold 43,244 metric tons of sugar. The production
of molasses rose ko 26,350 mefric tons as ogoinst 22, 1 B0 melric jons last year, Key comparafive daia for

the curment year and that of previous year is as follows:

Sugor cone crushed (metic lons) 509,204 455,129
Sugar producion [mek kons) 36,681 48 2072
Maolossss production [malnc ions] 26,350 22,180

SLETELE MBSOV 10.41% 10.5%%




um Mafsalss we Costofsoles »w Gross profit = » Profit abier to

Finandal parformanco

mhpﬂhduﬁﬂmhw thare was o 3% dacling in the salas revenue of the Campany from the comesponding
’““"mmﬂﬁ“mbfﬁ” e PR 177 5 “iﬂ’z’“‘“““ﬁ?ﬁ;*’ﬁh
wgur:um rete govammant par , N incraciss over
..uam mrmmm#ng;:ﬂ?ﬂmwﬁ&*;mi”mh%wwﬁh
malric ons of rrairic fons B year wal an imprevamant in salling
pn:unfmgnr%:hlnﬁﬂ?nmudﬁwﬂmﬂ:ﬂmﬁwmmmummﬁmmﬂdwhhdwwﬂm
iramant and risa in interast rotes during the pariod under review, During the pariod, the Company
accounted for its onedhird share of profit in Unicol Limiled amounting io Rs. 42,83 million and odjusted its investment
in the associate by the some amaount. For the year under review, the after tox profit of the Company increasad o Rs.
137 71 million from Rs. 84.30 million kast year.

Turncwer - net 2,739.67 2.823.67
Cost of soles _R375.30)  RAITE)
Gross proki 364,37 345,89
Othes income 498 2.07
Share of profit in associote 42,83 B.2%
Othar expansas & taxes [274.47)  [271.95)

Met profit 13771 84.30




Unical Limited

The joint venture distillery project is aperating of opfimum copocity ond is producing high quolity ethanal for expart.
The dissillery, during the year under review, expored 25,903 tons of ethanal and mode an abler lax profit of

Rs. 128.44 million. We are canfidant that Unical will bring hurther financial benafils fo the Company and its
shareholdars in the years lo come.

Cnrp-wmlnﬁdmpnnﬂhhf
Your Company n variows sociol and wellore initatives. During the under review, e
dﬁrnﬁnmm pg.::lmﬂ'lmﬂmmwmnmhﬁmr:m% cnrp,;u'f.;iu:mmmu ng:m'i?plbulad

o various social and charilable couses. During fhe year, the ru:udﬁﬂdiwshllb'_.rhwwrmmand
i:hnmmdwid&:pmuddumﬂﬁﬁmhhfhmmdpmpmmnﬂmpmphnﬁhdi Responsive fo the

of the in this hour of the lounched relief efforts of the
S s o b el o e Comon oot el ls o s e e
on a daily basis in hrﬂrﬂmmp.hmﬂﬁmdﬂmwﬁumhmdﬂwmﬁfmhhm

Sataty; health and envirenmeni

Baing o rsponsible :Iiun'lhl ramainad commited lo confinucus in haalth and
mﬂymhm hully compliant with i requiramants.
Furlwrrnr-hcnmpnnymmgly n-mm'hmmﬂ ndmnndl'mbm ing Meciunes on an
:mgl:lngl:m:uhmpmﬂ SCHMIE.

Shotement on corporate ond finendol reporing fromeswork

#  The financial siotements prepared by the Company fairly prasent ity stoke of affairs, the result of operations, cash
fiows and chonges in aquity.

* Proper books of occount have been mainicined by the Company.

* Appropriate occounting policies have been consiskently opplied in the preparafion of inancial siotements and
accounling esimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgmenl.

*  Applicable Inernational Accounting Stondards have been kollowed in preparation of financial sitements ond

*  The system of internal control has been effectively implemenied and is continuously reviewed and meniloned.
* The Compony is o going concem and there are no doubts olocut its ability lo continue.

»  There has been ne material departure from the best proctices of the code of corporate governance, as delailed in
the listing requlations.

= Kay operafing ond Financial data for last six (4] years in summarized form is ofioched.

* The Comparny has baan daclaring regulor dividands to its shamshaoldars, However, il could not do o for the year
2003,/04 and 2006/07 due to operational bosses,

= There is nothing cutstanding ogainst your company on account of taxas, dulies, levies ond cther chorges axcept for
thise which are being made in normol course of business,

* The Company maingins Provident and Grahuity Fund accounts for its employees. Sioled below are the volues of
thes irvesimant of the funds o3 on Seplember 30, 2011,

= Provigen! Fund PrR 115.52 millicn

L E:'rljhj'l:,l F':Jr"‘j F'F'E JI a‘: r|'|i|||;:1'l




= [During the yeor, four meatings of the Board of Directors wers held, The oflendonce record of sach direclor is as
fedlowes:

Mr. Akbarali Pesnani

Mr. Aslom Foreque

Mr. Arit Faruque

N ke, Tocrom

Mr. Magboal H.H, Rahimiocla
Mr. Nosemuddin Bust *

Mr. Muhammed lgbal Hussain
Mr. Taufiqua Habib

B B W OB Bk R R

¥

*  Mr. Toufiqua Hobib waos elacted s o Director on Decambar 30, 2010 in place of Mr. Nossmuddin Bu,

*  Pabern of shareholding is annexed with the report,

= Mo troding in the shares of the Compony was mode by the Chief Executive, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
=  Eornings per share for the yeor s Rs. 14.33 per share compored with Rs. 10.00 lost year,
Confribution to natianal axchaquar

The Company contributed around Rs. 1460 million o the Government ireasury in shope of excise duty, income lax and
sales fox.

Future prospects

Sufficient availability of sugar cane and siability in sugar prices will shape the future prospacts of the industry, Heavy
monsoan rains during fhe month of August and Seplember 2011 cousad Roading in the province of Sindh. Thess
floods not only domaged the stlanding crops but also coused wide spread destruction fo the infrastructure inchuding
roads, housing and communication in the offecled areas os economic octivifies wene brought 1o o siondstill as o e,
While assessments are still being made obout the extent of destruction, we esfimate that about 20% of the sugar cane
his been domaged becouse of the rains. The Sindh Government has fixed the price of sugar cane ot PKR 154 per
maund up from PKR 127 per maund last saasan, which will have a severs impact on the cost of praduction coupled
with falling prices of . During the past two moniha, the pri:uhaudmpptdl‘rmh.?ﬂpu&hlh.#ﬂ
per Kg. M,ﬁbmmminpﬂhmmﬂﬁdﬁmwhmdpmiﬂm. We the
decision of the State Bonk of Pakisian to reduce the discount rate, which would provide much required relief 1o the
sugar industry,

Auditors

The present auditors M/s. Hyder Bhimji and Co. [Charered Accountants) refire and being efigible, offer themsedves for
reappoiniment,

Acknowledgment

W would like to thank all the financial insiuions having business relofianship with us and our custemars for thair

continued support and cooperation. We would olso like to share our deepest oppraciotion for our siaff for their
dedication, loyalty ond hard wark.

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclars

Karachi; Decembar 15, 2011 Chairman



statement of compliance

with the best practices of code of corporate governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in the listing
regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange for the purpose of esicblishing a framewark of good governance,
whereby a listed company is managed in complionce with the best proctices of corporate governance,

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner;

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-execulive directors and directors
represanting minarity interest an its Board of Direciors. Al present, the Board includes six non-axecutive
directors, three of whom are independent.

2. The directors have confirmed thot none of them is serving o3 o direcior in more than fen listed compaonies,
including this Company.

3. Al tha rasident directors of the Company are registered as laxpayers and none of them has defaulied in

payment of any loan to o banking Company, a DFl or on NBF| or, baing a member of o stack exchange,
has been declared os a defauller by that skock axchange.

4. Mo cosual vacancy occurred an the Board during the year.

5. The Company hos prepared a "Siclement of Ethics ond Business Proctices’, which hos been opproved by
the Board of Directors and hos basn circulated o all amployess of the Company,

&, The Board has developed vision and mission siotement/overall corporate sirateqy and significont policies
ol the Company.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exarcised and decisions on material fransactions, including

appoinimant and determination of remunaration ond terms and conditions of amployment of the CEQ and
other executive directors, have been foken by the Board.

B. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his obsence, by a director slected
by the Board for this purpose and the Board met of least once in every quarter. Written notices of the
Board meetings along with agenda and working popers were circuloted of least seven days before the
meatings. Tha minutes of the maatings wara appropriately recorded and circulated.

Q. The directors of Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Lid, are professionally qualified and axparienced parsons and are
well aware of their duties and responsibilities. Further, an orieniation course for direciors was arrenged by
the Company to appriss directors of thair duties ond responsibilities. A director of the Company s alsa
certified under the Board Development Series Program offered by Pokistan Institvte of Corporate
Governanca [PICG).

10, Tha Baard has approved the appointmant of the Chisf Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Haad of
Internal Audit.

11, The Directors’ Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12, The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEQ and the CFO before approval
of the Boord,

13, The directors, CEQ ond execulives do not hold any inferest in the shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the pattern of sharehclding.




14,

%

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

The Company has complied with oll the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code,

. The Board has formed an audit committes. It presantly comprises of four members, three of whom are

non-executive directors including the Chairman of the Commites.

The meetings of the audit commitiee were held ot least once every quarter prior o the opproval of
interim and final results of the Company and os required by the Code. Tha terms of reference of the
committes have been formed and odvised 1o the committee for complionce.

The Board has setup an effective internal oudit funcrion.

The stotutory ouditors of the Company have confirmed that they hove been given o sofisfoctory rating

under the quality contral review programma of the Institute of Chariered Accountants of Pakistan, that

they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the

Company and that the lirm and oll its partnars ors in compliance with International Fedaration of

:::-:-unwm [IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by Instilvte of Chartered Accountants of
akizhan,

Tha stotutory ouditors or tha parsons assaciated with tham hove not bean oppointed io provide other
sarvices excepl in accordance with the listing regulations and the audilors I?::n confirmed that they
hava cbsarved IFAC guidslinas in this regard.

The Related Party transoctions have been placed bafora the Audit Committea and opproved by the
Board of Directors alongwith pricing mathads for such transactions.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the Code of Corporate Governance have
been complied with.

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

ASLAM FARUGLUE

Karochi: Decembser 15, 2011 Chiel Executive

statement of compliance

with the best practices of transfer pricing

The Company has hully complied with the best practices of Transfer Pricing as contained in the Listing
Regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange.

Far and an behalf of tha Bsard af Direclan

ASLAM FARLKILIE

Karachi; Decamber 15, 2011 Chief Exacidive



review report o the members

on statement of compliance with the best practices of code of
corporale governance

HYDER BHIMII & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Svite Mo. 1601, Kashif Centre,
Shohroh-e-Faial, Karochi-7 5530

Member of Phone  : +92.21.35840050 - 52
KRESTOMN [MTERMATHCMAL Fax : +92-21-35440053
with affiliomd offices warldwida Website : www.hyderbhimji.com

W howe reviewed the Sialemen! of Complionce with the bes! proclices conlained in the Code of Corporate Governonce
far the yoar ended Seplembaer 30, 2011 prepared by the Baord of Direciors of Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limiled |“the
Company”| to comply with the Lisfing Regulations of the respecive Siock Exchanges, where the Company is lised.

The responsibility for complioncs with the Code of Corparate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the Company,
Our raspontibility it 1o review, 1o the axtant whara weh compliance can ba chjsctivaly verifiad, whathar tha Statemant of
Complionce reflacts the siatus of the Company's compliones with the provisions of the Code of Corporole Governance and
repod if it does nol. A review i imiled primarily lo inguiries of the Company personnel and review of various decuments
prepared by the Company o comply with the Code.

As part of our oudit of financial siolaments we are required lo obloin an undersionding of the acceunling and infernal
conirol 3 sufficient bo plan the oudit and develop an efective oudit approach, We have not caried oul any special
review af the internal confrol yysiem o enable us o axpress on opinion o3 o whether the Board's siatement on internol
control covars ofl controls and the affectiveness of such internol contrals,

Further, Sub - Regulation {xiii o of Listing Regulations 35 notified by the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchonges requires the
Company to ploce belore the Boord of Direciors for their consideration and approval reloted party tronsoctions distinguish-
ﬁ between transactions carried out on terms equivalent io those that prevail in arm's length fransactions ond ransacfions

ich are not exacuted af orm's length price recording proper [ustification for using such allmmeate pricing machaniam.
Further, all such transoctions are olso required lo be separately ploced belore the oudil commitiee. We are only required
and have ansuned complionce of requiremant to the adent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of
Direciors and plocement of such iransactions before the oudit commities. Wa have not carried out any procedures o
datermina whather tha reloted party ransactions wers undenoken at arm's length price or nol.

Based on our review nathing hos come to aur afention which couses us fo belisve that the Satement of Compliance doas

not opproprioely reflect the Company's compliance, in ofl material respects, with the best proctices contained in the Code
of Corporate Governance, os opplicable o the Company for the year endad September 30, 2011.

L
HYDER BHIMII & Co,

Chartered Accountants
Karnchi: Decenber 15, 3001 Engagememt Pariner: Hyder AN Bhimji
Lahore: Amin Building 65-The Mall Faizalahad: 206, 14 Floor, Business Centre
Phone: 042-37352661-37321043 MNew Civil Lines
Fax # D42-3T350515 Phone: (41-261 5632-041-261 5630
Fox #: 041-2617902

UEL: hipaiwwow hyderbhimji com
E-mail: bhimjidfcyber.net.pk




statement of ethics & business practices

Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited was estoblished with an

aim of producing high quality sugar for i customars and

rr'ruﬁnghm-:p-amﬁmuﬁ its siokeholders, We ensure
ism ot every step of our

raniparancy and
dealings, and look aoffer the inlerests of our stakeholders,

This statement of the Company is based on the following

e
Quality of produd

* W sirive fo produce the highest quality of sugar for
our cusiomars,

* Wa believe in technology and innovation and strive
to implement innovative ideas in the Company.

* 'We maintain all relevant technical and professional
siandards to be compatible with the requirements of
tha frade.

Dealing with employees
Wamugnmuﬂmwdmﬁapmhﬂui

* We measure the performance of our emplayees by
their ability lo meet their » Ihair condud! af

W‘hﬁﬂ"@mﬂi:ﬁﬂhﬂhmﬂmﬂﬂmﬁl

organizaticn, their coniribulion lowoards asning
pecple ond succession planning, and innovaion ot
thair work ploca.

whara ol

* Wa ensure f

» ‘Wa hove a sound and efficient Internal Audil

depariment fo enhance the reliability of the financial
hhnmnﬂdmtuﬁdbghtmmy It
also helps in building the confidence of our exdemal
shakeholders.

Purchass of goods & Hmaly paymant
= To ensure cost effectivenass, muiywdmngmdl

ond services thal meet our and are
priced appropriciely. To gouge the markst condifions
and evailability of substinse praducts or services, we
obiain quolafions from various sources bafore
finalizing our decision.
payments, which over the years,
has built trust and refiobility amongst our suppliers.

Confict of intorost
- Actvities ood imvolvement of the direciors and

employees of the Company in no way conflict with the
infarest of the Company. All acts and decisions of the
monogement are made in the interest of the

ompany.

Obssrvancs to lows of the country
= The Company fulfills all stiatutory requirements of the

Gavernment and follows all applicable lows of the
coumniry.

' ”pwnmngmhlw:&
trected with respect ond dignity and ~ Envirenmental protection

work as o mam for o comman goal.

* Unless specificolly menficned, all rules and
prevailing in the Company apply to oll levels of
employeas of the Company.

Responsibility to sodety [ interested parties

+ 'Wa hove an imponant role lowonds our society,
sharsholdern, creditors, the Government and public
ot large. We ore objeciive and ransparent in our
daalings with all our sinkeholders 5o as o maat tha
expectations of the people who rely on us.

* We meet o our obligations and enaure fimely
compliance.

Finandal reparting & internal controls

* To meat the expeciations of the wide spectrum
of society ond Government ogencies, wa hove

implemented an effective, ransparent and fair
system of financial reporting and inlermal controls,

« To ensure afficient and Mmﬂhﬂ;mﬁmia;d
Comparmy's resources, wa ploced Hnancial
planning and reparfing of the heort of management

as this nat anly sarves to focilioe vioble and

timaly decisions, but also makes Company dealings

* The Comparny uses all means ko

ﬂmmuﬂmdiumhm%mﬂmhfdh
work force. We have, and will continue to aoin,

nﬂmrbdwﬁbmpmhdhn&h
environment and well being of the people living in
adjcining araas of cur plant,

Objectives of the Company
= We at Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limiled, recognize the

naed of working of tha highest siandards o meet the
expaciofions of all our siakeholdars.

* Wa conduct the business of the Company with

integrity and supply only quality and credible
infermicticn,

* We produce and supply goods ond information with

great cone and , 10 engyre that cusiomers
and creditons receive the best quality and care.

« We respect the confidentiality of the information

ocquired during the course of our work with our
business associates, and refrain from acfing in any
manner which could discredit the Company.

« Qur organization is free of ol vested interests that

could cffct is inkagrily, chbiacivity and
independence
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production and financial highlights
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statement of value addition

WEALTH GEMNERATED

Gross sales 2,857 555 2,966,831
Material and Services (2,211,801) (2,338,257)
645 754 628,574

Othar incoma 4983 2,074
Share of profit in on associate A2 B24 8,284
_ 693,563 638,934

WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION 203,166  29% 175728 28%

GOVERNMENT AS:

Sales tox, special excise duty, & company faxation 154,287 231,720

Workers' funds 9,299 10,974 E
163,586  24% 242,404 38%

CHARITY & DONATIONS 2,997 . 389 .

SHAREHOLDERS AS DIVIDEMD

Cash dividend** . 8,433 10,542 |
Bonus sharas* * 12,650 14,055 |
21,083 3% 24,597 4%
FINAMNCE COST 145310 21% 103,958 16%
RETAINED IM BUSINESS
Depraciation & amartizafion Jﬂ,?.m _ETETEEE
Retainad profit 116,631 | 59,702 |
157,421 23% 21,568 14%
493563 100% 438,934 100%
“nagligible |
* *pos! balonce shee! event
201 2010
Employaas Govarnmant Sharahaldars Financa cost  Ratained in business
: 23%




MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

auditors' report fo the members

HYDER BHIMIJI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Suite No. 1601, Kashif Centre,
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75530
Member of Phone : +92-21-35640050 - 52
KRESTON INTERNATIONAL Fax 1 +92-21-35640053
with affiliated offices worldwide Website : www.hyderbhimiji.com

We have audited the annexed Balance Sheet of M/s. MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LIMITED (“the Company”) as at September

30, 2011 and the related Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all
the in?ormation and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and
present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the reguirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the a%ove said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
b) in our opinion:

i)  the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with
the accounting policies consistently applied;

i)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects of the Company;

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, the Balance Sheet and Profit
and Loss Account, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity together
with the notes forming part there of conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pdiistan, and, give the
information required%y the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required, and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2011 and of the profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted
by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

Tt -&‘»;L,;,..b,\ “ T,
HYDER BHIMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi: December 15, 2011 Engagement Partner: Hyder Ali Bhimji
Lahore: Amin Building, 65 The Mall. Faisalabad: 206, 1st Floor,

Phone: 042-37352661-37321043 Business Centre, New Civil Lines

Fax :042-37359515 Phone: 041-2615632-041-2615650

Fax :041-2617902

URL: http://www.hyderbhimji.com
E-mail: bhimji@cyber.net.pk




balance sheet

as at september 30, 2011

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4 963,153 807,230
Intangible asset 5 4,767 2,200
Long-term investment 6 218,903 176,077
Long-term deposits 7 732 732
1,187,555 986,239
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 8 151,795 111,144
Stock-in-trade 9 886,781 125,715
Trade debts 10 13,481 90,979
Loans and advances 11 112,852 77,412
Short-term prepayments 12 1,251 1,380
Other receivables 13 26,062 6,803
Short-term investments 14 58,180 56,616
Taxation - net 15 1,059 -
Cash and bank balances 16 15,651 31,152
1,267,112 501,201
TOTAL ASSETS 2,454,667 1,487,440
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 17 84,332 70,277
Reserves 18 411,367 311,318
495,699 381,595
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS 19 173,056 173,056
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financings 20 344,445 88,890
Deferred liabilities 21 251,887 249,341
596,332 338,231
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 22 637,795 365,993
Accrued mark-up 23 32,309 14,843
Short-term borrowings 24 475,032 161,878
Current portion of long-term financings 20 44,444 44,444
Taxation - net - 7,400
1,189,580 594,558
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 25
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,454,667 1,487,440
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
.-"ﬂ-
...-" | _{& '
i
ASLAM FARUQUE TARIQ FARUQUE
Chief Executive Director




MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

orofit and loss account

for the year ended september 30, 2011

Turnover - net
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Distribution cost

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit
Finance cost

Share of profit in an associate
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Current

Prior
Deferred

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic (Rupees)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

.'-. n"‘.

i |

ASLAM FARUQUE

Chief Executive

26
27

28
29
30

31

32

33

34

2,739,671 2,823,671
(2,375,297) (2,477,780)
364,374 345,891

(5,940) (4,985)
(79,833) (79,108)
(12,806) (11,854)
(98,579) (95,947)

4,983 2,074
270,778 252,018
(145,310) (103,958)
125,468 148,060
42,826 8,286
168,294 156,346
(30,194) (30,734)
(386) =

- (41,313)
(30,580) (72,047)
137,714 84,299
(Restated)

16.33 10.00

W%mfﬁﬁ}'

TARIQ FARUQUE

Director




statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended september 30, 2011
| 2011 | 2010

Profit after taxation 137,714 84,299
Fair value loss on available-for-sale securities (13,068) (7,212)
Total comprehensive income for the year 124,646 77,087

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

.-"IHH'-

ASLAM FARUQUE TARIQ FARUQUE

Chief Executive Director

L LOZ 1¥4Od3Fd 'VANNY




cash flow stotement

for the year ended september 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Rupees in “000)

Profit before taxation 168,294 156,346
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 4.1.1 40,057 31,866
Amortization 5.1 733 =
Dividend income from a related party 31 (810) -
Share of profit in an associate 6.1.2 (42,826) (8,286)
Gain on disposal of operating property, plant and equipment 31 (443) (23)
Finance cost 32 145,310 103,958
142,021 127,515
Operating profit before working capital changes 310,315 283,861
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (40,651) 9,048
Stock-in-trade (761,066) 77,456
Trade debts 77,498 (6,929)
Loans and advances (35,440) (54,901)
Short-term prepayments 129 1,391
Other receivables (19,259) 13,150
o (778,789) 39,215
7l Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
s Trade and other payables 271,554 73,927
= Short-term borrowings 313,154 (8,362)
2 584,708 65,565
2] Cash generated from operations 116,234 388,641
T
4
5 Income tax paid - net (39,039) (15,188)
g Decrease in long-term deposits - 6
Increase in deferred liabilities 2,546 2,276
(36,493) (12,906)
Net cash generated from operating activities 79,741 375,735
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to operating property, plant and equipment 4.1 & 4.4 (198,163) (210,189)
Intangible asset acquired 5 (3,300) (2,200)
Sale proceeds of operating property, plant and equipment 4.2 2,626 64
Short-term investments (14,632) -
Dividend received from a related party 31 810 -
Net cash used in investing activities (212,659) (212,325)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance cost paid (127,844) (107,204)
Long-term financings-net 255,555 (44,444)
Payment of dividend (10,294) (15,646)
Net cash generated from / (used) in financing activities 117,417 (167,294)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (15,501) (3,884)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 31,152 35,036
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15,651 31,152
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
.""n'.
L.
ASLAM FARUQUE TARIQ FARUQUE
Chief Executive Director




statement of changes in equity

for the year ended september 30, 2011

’ Reserves
Issue :
subscribed I;?r:r}lc('ﬂgfs)
d u iated 9 ;
Gl General | Ynappropriated | on qyailable-|  Total Totall
PGIO!-UP reserves profit (reslle
capital securities
(Rupees in “000)
Balance as at October 01, 2009 63,888 34,250 169,361 52,981 256,592 320,480
Total comprehensive income 84,299 (7,212) 77,087 77,087
Cash dividend for the year ended
Sep. 30, 2009 @ Rs.2.50 per share (25%) (15,972) (15,972) (15,972)
Issue of bonus shares @ 10% 6,389 (6,389) (6,389)
i.e 01 share for every 10 shares held
Balance as at September 30, 2010 70,277 34,250 231,299 45,769 311,318 381,595
Balance as at October 01, 2010 70,277 34,250 231,299 45,769 311,318 381,595
Total comprehensive income 137,714 (13,068) 124,646 124,646
Cash dividend for the year ended
Sep. 30, 2010 @ Rs.1.50 per share (15%) (10,542) (10,542) (10,542)
Issue of bonus shares @ 20% 14,055 (14,055) (14,055)
i.e 02 shares for every 10 shares held
Balance as at September 30, 2011 84,332 34,250 344,416 32,701 411,367 495,699

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

.'-. n‘.

i |

ASLAM FARUQUE

Chief Executive

"':“‘T-f{ar‘:ﬁ';'

TARIQ FARUQUE

Director

L 10T LIOd3d IVANNY




MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

notes 1o the financial statements

for the year ended september 30, 2011

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on May 27, 1964 as a public
limited company and its shares are quoted on Karachi Stock Exchange. Principal activity of the Company
is manufacturing and selling sugar.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Modern Motors House, Beaumont Road, Karachi.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, (the Ordinance), provisions and directives issued under the Ordinance. In
case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Ordinance shall prevail.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention without any
adjustments for the effect of inflation or current values, except for derivatives financial instruments and
investments which are stated at their fair value, certain inventories which are valued at Net Realizable
Value (NRV), certain employees retirement benefits that are based on actuarial valuation and free
hold land which stands at revalued amount.

3.2 Significant accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires management fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgment
about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. However,
uncertainity about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require material
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and any future periods affected.

Judgments made by the management in the app|ico’rion of approved accounting standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment
in the next year are discussed in the ensuing paragraphs.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,
judgments and assumptions which are significant to the financial statements:

a) Employees retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 3.4 to the financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benetit obligation and fair value of plan assets. Any changes
in these assumptions in future years might affect gains and losses in those years. The qctuariorvduotion
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rate of return on assets, future salary
increases and mortality rates.




b)

d)

f)

9)

h)

3.3

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation / amortization, useful life and
residual value used in the calculation of depreciation / amortization. Further, where applicable, an
estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In
making these estimates, the Company uses technical resources available with the Company. Any
change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item ofyproperty,

plant and equipment and Intangible assefs, with corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortization
charge and impairment.

Classification of investments

The monoc?emenf has exercised its judgment in respect of classification of investments as disclosed in
note 6 and 14 to the financial statements. Any change in such judgment might materially affect the
accounting policy applied in respect of such investments.

Stock-in-trade, stores, spare parts and loose tools

The Company reviews the NRV of stores, spare parts and loose tools to assess any diminution in their
respective carrying values. NRV is estimated with reference fo the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Trade debts, loans and advances and other receivables

The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts, loans and advances and other receivables at each
reporting date o assess whether provision should be recorded in the profit and loss account. In
particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when defermining fEe level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions
about a number of factors and actual results may dif?er, resulting in future changes to the provision.

Taxation

In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the
applicable tax laws and decision by appellate authorities on certain issues in past.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required fo determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon fLe ﬁke|y timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

Provision for impairment

The Company reviews carrying amount of assets except deferred tax assets and inventories at balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
the assets recoverable amount is estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the profit and
loss account.

Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement as the
outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability
of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities which may differ on
the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

Taxation
Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with
the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account
tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is compared with 1%
of turnover tax, calculated at applicable tax rates under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 and under final tax regime, whichever is higher is provided in the financial statements. The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.
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MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

b)

b)

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet |iobi|i3/ method, on all temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the deductible
temporary differences will reverse in the future and sufficient taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to ﬁ1e
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. In this regard, the effects on
deferred taxation of the portion og,income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in
accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical Release - 27 of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), if considered material.

Sales tax and Federal excise duty (FED)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net off amount of sales tax / FED except:

- Where amount incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tax / duty is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

- Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax / FED included.

The net amount of sales tax and FED recoverable from, or pdycb|e to, the taxation cuthority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Employees retirement benefits

Provident fund scheme

The Company olpercfes an approved defined contribution provident fund scheme for its eligible
permanent employees who opted for the benefits. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the
Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.

Gratuity scheme

The ComponK oEerotes an approved and funded gratuity scheme for all of its eligible permanent
employees who have completed the minimum qualitying period of service. The scheme is administered
by the trustees nominated under the trust deed. The contributions to the scheme are made in accordance
with the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method.

The PUC method used the following significant assumptions for the valuation of the scheme.

Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

(% per annum|

Valuation discount rate 12.50 12.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets 12.50 12.00
Expected rate of salary increase 11.50 11.50

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gains or losses exceed 10 percent of the higher oFdefined benefit obligation and the fair
value of p?an assets as of the end of the previous reporting period. These gains or ?osses are recognized
over the expected remaining working lives of the employees participating in the scheme.




Past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the average period until
the benefit become vested. If benefits already have been vested, immediately following the introduction
of, or change to the scheme, past service costs are recognized immediately.

The amount recognized in balance sheet represents the present value of defined benefit obligations
as adjusted for unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and as reduced by the fair value of plan
assefs.

Based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity scheme as of September 30, 2011, the fair value of
scheme's assets and the present value of obligation under the scheme at the balance sheet date were

as follows:
(Rupees in ‘000)

Staff gratuity fund liability:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 46,379 30,298
Fair value of plan assets (31,820) (14,037)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (9,187) (5,862)
Liability recognized as at September 30 5,372 10,399
Amounts charged to profit and loss account:
Current service cost 14,018 12,430
Interest cost 3,787 2,112
Expected return on plan assets (1,755) (1,990)
Actuarial gain recognized during the year 405 -
16,455 12,552
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet:
Balance as at October 1 10,399 248
Net charge for the year 16,455 12,552
Contribution / benefit paid to the fund (21,482) (2,401)
Balance as at September 30 5,372 10,399

Movement in the present value of defined
benefit obligation:

Balance as at October 1 30,298 17,599
Current service cost 14,018 12,430
Interest cost 3,787 2,112
Benefits paid during the year (1,482) (2,401)
Actuarial losses (242) 558
Balance as at September 30 46,379 30,298
Movement in the fair value of plan assets:
Balance as at October 1 14,037 16,582
Expected return 1,755 1,990
Contributions 21,482 2,401
Benefits paid during the year (1,482) (2,401)
Actuarial losses (3,972) (4,535)
Balance as at September 30 31,820 14,037
Composition of plan assets are as follows :
Special Saving Certificates (SSC's) 5,468 4,872
Listed securities 25,484 8,796
Amount in bank 868 369
31,820 14,037

The expected return on plan assets was based on the market expectations and depends upon the asset
portfolio of the Company, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life of related
obligation.
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The return on plan assets was assumed on the basis of market conditions. Actual return on plan assets
during 2011 was Rs.(0.734) million (2010: Rs. 2.54 million)

Comparisons with past years :

2011 | 2010 | 2009 | 2008 | 2007 |
[ Ryesin00) |

Present value of defined benefit (Rupees in “000)
obligation 46,379 30,298 17,599 14,781 13,494
Fair value of plan assets (31,820) (14,037) (16,582) (17,291) (35,011)
14,559 16,261 1,017 2,510 (21,517)
Experience adjustments arising
on plan liabilities (242) 558 705 340 1,632
Experience adjustments arising
on plan assets (2,490) (4,535) (2,463) (6,165) 9,926

(2,732) ~ (3,977)  (1,758)  (5,825) 11,558

3.5 Property, plant and equipment
a) Owned assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation except for free hold land which is stated at
revalued amount and capital work-in-progress, which is stated at cost. The revaluation of free hold
land is carried out once in every three years.

Depreciation is charged, on systematic basis over the useful life of the assets, to income applying
recﬁlcing balance method, except for furniture and fittings, office and other equipment and computer
and accessories which are depreciated using straight line method at the rates mentioned in note 4 to
the financial statements, which reflects the patterns in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed
by the enterprise. Additions to assets are depreciated monthly while no depreciation is charged on
assets disposed off during the month.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income, when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements which increase the asset's remaining useful economic life or the performance beyond
the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are refired.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets, if any, are recognized in the profit and loss account when
incurred.

The carrying values of owned assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. If such indications exist and
where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to
the recoverable amount.

b) Assets subject to finance lease

Assets held under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. These are accounted for by recording the asset at the lower of present value
of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of asset acquired. The
related obligation under the lease is accounted for as liability. Financial charges are allocated to the
Ic:cct::’olunting period in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic rate of change on the net standing
1ability.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using the same basis as for owned assets.

c¢) Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably.

Computer software and implementation costs that are directly associated with the computer and
computer controlled machines which cannot operate without the related specific software, are included
in the cost of respective assets. Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is
classified as intangible assets.




3.6

b)

d)

3.7

3.8

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment loss. Intangible
assets are amortized when assets are available for use on straight line method. Amortization is charged
from the month of the year in which addition / capitalization occurs while no amortization is charged
in the month in which an asset is disposed off.

Investments
In associate

Investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the investment
is initially recognized at cost as adjusted for post acquisition changes in the Company's share of net
assets ol‘yfhe associate and impairment in the value of investment and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the Company's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition which is recognized in the profit and loss account. Dividend received, if any, reduces the
carrying amount of investment. Changes in associate's equity including those arising from the revaluation
of properrﬁ, lant and equipment are recognized directly in the Company's equity in proportion of
the equity er()i. Profit / loss from material transactions with associate is eliminated. The reporting dates
of the associate and the Company are identical and the associate's accounting policies conform to
those used by the Company for |iﬁe transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Available-for-sale securities

These are non-derivative financial assets which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
but may be sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates .

These investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial measurement,
available-for-sale securities are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
recognized as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is
derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other operating income, and
removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.

Held-to-maturity investments

These represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
in respect of which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold till maturity. These investments
are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit and loss
account when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process.

Designated investments at fair value through profit or loss

Designated investments at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequently, these are measured at fair value whereas effects of changes in fair value are taken to
profit and loss account. Transaction costs are charged to profit and loss account when incurred.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value. Provision / write off, if
required is made for slow moving items where necessary to bring these down to approximate NRV
and is recognized in profit and loss. NRV is estimated with reference to the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary fo make sale. Loose tools are recorded
at actual cost.

Stock-in-trade

Stock in trade is valued at the lower of average manufacturing cost and NRV. The cost of sugar in
process includes cost of sugarcane and proportionate monufocturing expenses.

NRYV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinorK course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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3.9 Trade debts
Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried at original invoice amount less
provision for any uncollectible amounts. Provision for doubtful debts is based on the management's
assessment of customer’s outstanding balances and credit worthiness. Bad debts are written-off, when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

3.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for Trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

3.11 Revenue recognition
® Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to customers.

® Income / return on investments, loans, advances and bank deposits is recognized on an accrual
basis.

® Dividend income on equity investment is recognized, when the right to receive the same is

established.

® Capital gains or losses on sale of investments are recognized in the period in which they arise.

® Mark-up on growers’ loans is accounted for in line with the recovery of the respective loan due
to exigencies involved in such matters.

3.12 Foreign currency transactions and translations

The financial statements are presented in Pak. Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak. Rupees at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Pak. Rupees at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at the year
end exchange rates to monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized
in the profit and loss account.

MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

3.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation legal or constructive as a result
of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required fo seftle the o&igcﬁon and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessqri?y takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intendFéd use or sale are capitalized
as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

3.15 Related party transactions

Related party transactions are carried out on commercial ferms, as qpproveol by the Board, substantiated
as given in note 37 fo the financial statements.

3.16 Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes party fo the
contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized in case of assets, when the contractual
rights under the instrument are realized, expired or surrendered and in case of liability, when the
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired.




Any gain / loss on the recognition and derecognition of the financial assets and liabilities is recorded
in the profit and loss account for the period in which it arises.

3.17 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
A financial asset and financial liability is only offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Incomes and
expenses arising from such assets and liabilities are also offset accordingly.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and
balances in current, deposit and PLS accounts with the commercial banks.

3.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rupees in “000)

Property, plant and equipment - owned 4.1 889,924 683,949
Capital work in progress 4.4 73,229 123,281
963,153 807,230

4.1 Following are the statements of property, plant and equipment for current and prior year: z

¢

o

Adjustment y o =

2011 0'2\15 8t| Ad.diﬁons / S::. ?;O Oi\fs 8'1 for depreciuﬁon For the year SeA;.g(') ":::r/° g

Description 2010 " (disposals) 2011 2010 | o (disposals) 2011 annum =

(Rupees in “000)

OWNED ASSETS
Free hold land (Note 4.3) 186,698 - 186,698 - - - - 186,698 -

Building on free hold land:

- Factory 26,502 2,157 28,659 19,726 - 821 20,547 8,112 10

- Non factory 22,409 775 23,184 16,792 - 613 17,405 5,779 10

Plant & machinery 829,611 230,198 1,059,809 367,695 - 30,769 398,464 661,345 5

Furniture & fittings 338 - 338 84 - 53 137 201 20

Vehicles 38,653 13,160 48,175 22,220 (1,616) 5197 25,801 22,374 20
(3,638)

Office & other equipment 9,925 383 10,308 6,938 - 961 7,899 2,409 20

Computers & accessories 6,369 1,542 7,614 3,101 (136) 1,643 4,608 3,006 33.33

(297)

1,120,505 248,215 1,364,785 436,556 (1,752) 40,057 474,861 889,924
(3,935)




COST / REVALUATION DEPRECIATION

Additions /
Deorript oadl, [mebeten/| % | ogo
escription 00 isposals o OSb o Wl
P Zuee transfers 2010 2009

Adjustment
for depreciation
on (disposals) /

(transfers)

For the year |  Sep.30,

As at

2010

OWNED ASSETS

(Rupees in “‘000)

Free hold land (Note 4.3) 135,154 7,544 186,698 - 186,698
44,000
Building on free hold land:
-Factory 23,274 4,116 26,502 19,352 (74) 448 19,726 6,776 10
(888)
-Non factory 21,521 888 22,409 16,094 74 624 16,792 5,617 10
Plant & machinery 674,219 155,392 829,611 346,403 21,292 367,695 461,916 5
Furniture & fittings 3,543 247 338 2,935 (3,452) 601 84 254 20
(3,452)
Vehicles 34,907 5,694 38,653 20,466 (1,907) 3,661 22,220 16,433 20
(1,948)
a] Office & other equipment 12,666 2,172 9,925 8,810 (4,913) 3,041 6,938 2,987 20
5 (4,913)
E Computers & accessories 11,398 3,351 6,369 9,282 (8,380) 2,199 3,101 3,268 33.33
) (8,380)
5 916,682 178,516 1,120,505 423,342 (18,652) 31,866 436,556 683,949
é 44,000
§ (18,693)
= )
2011 | 2010
4.1.1  Depreciation charged for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 27 35,918 25,400
Distribution cost 28 183 -
Administrative expenses 29 3,956 6,466
40,057 31,866
4.1.2  Reconciliation of carrying amount:
Carrying amount at beginning of the year 683,949 493,340
Addition during the year 248,215 178,516
Revaluation of land - 44,000
Depreciation for the year (40,057) (31,866)
Disposals / transfers during the year at carrying amount (2,183) (41)

889,924 683,949




4.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Accumulated ] Book Sales Mode of .
Description u m porean oty

(Rupees in ‘000)

Computers & accessories

Computers 297 136 161 287 126 Insurance claim  EFU Geneneral Insurance Ltd.
Vehicles
- Suzuki Mehran VXR
Reg. # AKV-154 390 253 137 137 = Employee Mr. M. Naeem
car scheme Employee
- Suzuki Alto VXR
Reg. # APL-354 516 278 238 238 - Employee Mr. Wasim Akhtar
car scheme Employee
- Honda Civic
Reg. # ASF-414 1,800 455 1,345 1,650 305 Insurance claim  EFU Geneneral Insurance Lid.
- Toyota Corolla XLI
Reg. # AJR-378 920 618 302 302 - Employee Mr. A. R. Mallah
car scheme Employee
3,626 1,604 2,022 2,327 305

Aggregate of assets
disposed-off having
book value below
Rs.50,000 each:

12 12 - 12 12
3,935 1,752 2,183 2,626 443

4.3 This includes Rs.173.05 million (2010 : Rs. 173.05 million) in respect of revaluation surplus (Refer
note no.18). Had the revaluation not been carried out the freehold land would have been stated at
Rs.1.39 million (2010 : Rs.1.39 million).

Vehicles (Motorcycle)

>
Zz
4
c
>
-
tn 59
o)
-
=
N
2

(Rupees in “000)

4.4 Capital work-in-progress

Civil work 1,019 2,268
Plant and machinery 72,210 121,013
73,229 123,281

3. INTANGIBLE ASSET

o ™ Amoriation
Book Value

Description - Additions As at Y- For the As at Bl Life

Oct 01, S| g, year P30 Sep30

(Rupees in “000)
2011 ERP System 2,200 3,300 5,500 - 733 733 4,767 5 Years

2010 ERP System
(under development) - 2,200 2,200 - - - 2,200
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5.1 Amortization charged for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 27 440 -
Distribution cost 28 73 -
Administrative expenses 29 220 =
733 -
6. LONG TERM INVESTMENT - In Associate
Unicol Limited
11,549,998 (Sep. 2010: 10,499,998 )
fully paid ordinary shares
of Rs.10/- each
Equity held: 33.33 % (Sep. 2010 : 33.33%) 6.1 176,077 167,791
Share of profit 6.1.2 42,826 8,286
218,903 176,077

6.1 Unicol Limited

The Company holds 33.33 % (2010: 33.33 %) interest in Unicol Limited, which is a public limited (Un-
quoted) company. Share of profit / loss arising from the associate has been taken to profit and loss

account in accordance with the accounting policy as mentioned in note no.3.6(a) . The share of

Company in the net assets has been determined on the basis of the un-audited financial statements

for the year ended September 30, 2011.

6.1.1 The Company's inferest in assets & liabilities of
an associate is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets 267,389 258,726
Other long term assets 6,607 19,651
Current assets 273,072 265,130
547,068 543,507

Long term liabilities (47,587) (84,731)

Current liabilities (280,578) (282,699)

(328,165) (367,430)

Net assets 218,903 176,077

6.1.2 The Company's share in profit and loss of an associate is as follows:

Sales 664,886 504,236

Cost of goods sold (556,480) (449,103)
108,406 55,133

Other expenses, income and taxes (65,580) (46,847)
42,826 8,286

7. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

These represent deposits paid by the Company for obtaining various services.




10.

11.

12.

13.

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
Spare parts
Loose tools

Provision for obsolescence

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Sugar 27
Sugar in process 27

TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured, considered good

Related party:
Unicol Limited
Others:

74,335 47,361
82,726 69,193
734 590
157,795 117,144
(6,000) (6,000)
151,795 111,144
884,253 122,921
2,528 2,794
886,781 125,715
1,289 87,105
12,192 3,874
13,481 90,979

10.1 Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and aging analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

LOANS AND ADVANCES - Unsecured

Considered good:
Against expenses
To suppliers
To employees classified as recoverable
within next twelve months
To Provident fund trust
Against letters of credit
To sugar cane growers
To transport contractors

Considered doubtful:
Sugar cane growers
Provision there against

SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid insurance
Prepaid rent
Prepaid others

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax / federal excise duty on sale of sugar
Special excise duty on sale of sugar
Miscellaneous

13,481 90,979

- 18
97,488 68,767
437 244
405 3,658
10,480 884
763 763
3,279 3,078
112,852 77,412
5,400 5,400
(5,400) (5,400)
112,852 77,412
650 618

78 102

523 660
1,251 1,380
24,880 5,896
713 737
469 170
26,062 6,803

1 LOZ L4Od3Fd IVNNNY




MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

14.

15'

16.

16.1

17.

17.1

17.2

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale securities - Related party
Quoted:
Cherat Cement Company Limited
3,427,502 (2010: 3,427,502)
fully paid ordinary shares
of Rs.10/- each 28,277 37,565
Cherat Packaging Limited ( formerly Cherat Papersack Limited)
854,613 (2010: 405,000)
fully paid ordinary shares
of Rs.10/- each 29,903 19,051
58,180 56,616
TAXATION - NET
Income tax - net of provision 1,059 =
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks in:
Current accounts 10,239 26,865
PLS accounts 16.1 4,200 3,077
14,439 29,942
Cash in hand 1,212 1,210
15,651 31,152

Effective profit rate in respect of PLS accounts is 5% per annum (2010: 5 % per annum).
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

Number of Shares (Rupees in “000)

15,000,000 15,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 150,000 150,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,770,000 1,770,000 Issued for cash 17,700 17,700
Issued as fully paid
bonus shares :

5,257,680 4,618,800 -Opening balance 52,577 46,188
1,405,535 638,880 ssued during the year 14,055 6,389
6,663,215 5,257,680 66,632 52,577

8,433,215 7,027,680 84,332 70,277




17.3

20.

From commercial Mode & commencement Security mm
banks of repayment (Rupees in “000)

Following is the detail of shares held by the related parties.

Number of shares

Name of related parties

Faruque (Private) Limited 3,493,380 2,911,150
Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited 201,229 167,691
3,694,609 3,078,841

RESERVES
The detailed reconciliation of reserves is disclosed in the statement of changes in equity.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS

(Rupees in “000)

173,056 173,056

Surplus on revaluation of free hold land

It represents revaluation of free hold land which has been carried out by independent valuers M/s Engineering
Pakistan Int'l (Pvt.) Limited as of July 21, 2009 to determine the present (realizable) market value by
enquiring from local active realtors. Revaluation surplus was credited to surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
account.

LONG TERM FINANCINGS - Secured

Plant Expansion

loans
Finance | Nine quarterly First pari-passu 88,889 133,334 6 months average
Installments equitable KIBOR + 1%
commenced from hypothecation
September 2009 charge on plant
& machinery
Finance 2 Ten quarterly First pari-passu 300,000 = 6 months average
Installments equitable KIBOR + 0.75%
commencing from hypothecation
February 2013 charge on
moveable fixed
assets
388,889 133,334
Less: Current maturity 44,444 44,444
344,445 88,890

21.

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

(Rupees in “000)

Quality premium 25.1.2 and 25.1.3 78,985 78,985
Market committee fee 25.1.4 25,572 23,026
Surcharge on cess payable 3,547 3,547
Deferred tax liability - net 21.1 143,783 143,783

251,887 249,341
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22.

23.

24,

21.1 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - NET

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of :

- Accelerated tax depreciation allowance

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of :
- Liabilities written back

- Turnover tax

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors
- For goods supplied
- Others
Accrued liabilities
Advances from customers
Deposits
Unclaimed dividend
Other liabilities
22.1 Other liabilities
Suppliers income tax
Staff income tax
Sales tax with held payable
Sales tax
Special excise duty
Workers' profit participation fund

Workers' welfare fund
Others

22.1.1  Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance as on October 01
Interest there on

Less: Payment during the year
Add: Contribution for the year
ACCRUED MARK-UP
On long-term financing

On short-term borrowings

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS-SECURED

22.1

22.1.1

32

188,898 188,898
(1,575) (1,575)
(43,540) (43,540)
(45,115) (45,115)
143,783 143,783
133,185 132,175
: 6,800
22,404 11,838
450,692 179,603
145 145
2,942 2,694
28,427 32,738
637,795 365,993
138 94
1,436 661
1,245 409
5,731 6,163
45 911
6,738 7,952
5,583 3,022
7,511 13,526
28,427 32,738
7,952 9,757
292 345
8,244 10,102
(8,244) (10,102)
6,738 7,952
6,738 7,952
9,292 5177
23,017 9,666
32,309 14,843

This represents utilised portion of running finance facilities aggregating Rs.1,569 million (2010 : 1,199
million) obtained from various commercial banks. These carry mark-up ranging from 1 month KIBOR +
1.75 % to 3 month KIBOR + 0.75 % per annum. The facilities are secured against registered first pari passu
hypothecation charge over various assets of the Company. These facilities are repayable / renewable

annually.




25.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

25.1
25.1.1

25.1.2

25.1.3

25.1.4

25.1.5

25.1.6

25.1.7

Contingencies:

The Company has filed suits before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the arbitrary action
of Collector of Customs and Central Excise for denying the rebate claim related to the financial
years 1991-92 and 1992-93. The Company is entitled to get 50 % rebate in Excise Duty which
amounts to Rs.11.15 million and Rs.1.14 million respectively on account of excess production during
the years over the preceding years production. The Company has paid the amount demanded b
the Government. The amount has oﬁeady been charged off in the accounts. The management oz
the Company is of the view that outcome of the suit would be in favour of the Company.

The sugar mills in Sindh are required to pay quality premium to the cane growers at the rate of
fifty (50) paisas per forty (40) Kg cane for each 0.1 % of excess sucrose recovery above the
benchmark of 8.7 % determined on over all sucrose recovery of each mill. The Company challenged
the levy of quality premium before the Honorable High Court of Sindh, which decided the matter
against the Company. Aggrieved with the judgment, the Company has filed an appeal with the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. While admitting the appecrc ainst the impugned judgment
of the HonoraE|e High Court, the Honorable Supreme Court gronfec?stoy. The Punjab government
is not charging any quality premium in view of an earlier decision of Lahore High Court in a similar
case in which the Court had declared the demand of quality premium as unlawful. The Company
has recognised the financial impact upto September 30, 2008, as a matter of prudence as described

in note 25.1.3.

The Company has challenged in the Honorable High Court of Sindh, the issue of Notification No.
8 (142) SO (EXT) / 95 - XXI dated 24th December, 2002 issued by the Secretary to the Government
of Sindh, Agriculture Department in connection with the fixation of sugar cane price and payment
of quality premium. Pending judgement of the Sindh High Court, the Company has provicﬁacrthe
liability in this regard, As judgement is still pending the government has suspended the levy of
quality premium for crushing season 2008-09, 2009-10 and 2010-11.

The Company has filed a case in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the levy of market
committee fee by the Government of Sindh on sugarcane purchased at the factory. The Sindh High
Court has granted status quo. Full todate provision of Rs.25.57 million (2010: Rs.23.03 million)
has been made as a matter of prudence, which includes Rs.2.54 million for the crushing season
2010-11.

a) The Company challenged levy of further sales tax @1.5 % under the Sales Tax Act 1990,
amounting to Rs.4.89 million in the Sindh High Court, for which relief was granted. Against
the iud ment, the depcrtment preferred c:ppec1| with the Honourable Supreme Court, and got
stay orger. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has set aside the case and referrec?it
to the lower level. No provision is made in this regard since the management is confident that
the outcome would be in Company's favour.

b) The amendment brought in vide Finance Ordinance 2001 in the Sales Tax Act with the infention
to nullify the decision of the High Court on levy of further tax @3% w.e.f 18 June 2001 does
not change the legal position of further tax. However, the Company made the payment of 3%
further tax under protest in order to avoid the additional tax and penalties. In previous years,
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan had set asided the case and referred it to the tribunal
level, where the Company appeal is pending. In view of the contingencies involved in this case,
the Company has not accounted for as refund an amount of Rs.50.97 million being the further
sales tax paid in this behalf.

The Company challenged levy of professional tax under Finance Act 1999 in the Sindh High Court.
Accepting Company’s contention, the Honourable High Court granted relief. The Government has
filed appeal against the judgment in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan. No provision has
been made since 1999-2000 for levy totaling Rs.0.93 mi||:|)ion (2010: Rs.0.85 million). The Company

is confident that the same is not likely to materialize.

The Company in 2010, has filed a petition in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against
a show cause notice issued by Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP), challenging the vary
jurisdiction of the Competition Commission. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed
the petition on the ground that this matter is already under proceedings with Honourable High
Courts and refrained CCP from passing any final / penal order till Encﬂ decision is achieved at
Honourable High Courts. Therefore, there are no financial implications related to this at the moment.
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25.1.8 The Company in 2010, has filed a suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan
Standards and Quality Control Authority (the Authority) challenging the levy of mqr?(ing fee under
PSQCA Act-VI of 1996. The Authority has demanded a fee payment @ 0.1% of ex-factory price
for the year 2008-09 amounting to Rs. 1.40 million. The Company is of the view that demand
notifications so raised are without any lawful authority under the PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and are
in violation of the constitution. The Honourable High Court of Sindh has accepted the petition and
termed that the impugned notifications have been issued without lawful authority and suspended
the operation of the impugned notifications. No provision has been made in this regard since the
management is confident that the outcome would be in Company's favor as the amount is insignificant
and is not likely to materialize.

25.2 Commitments

(Rupees in “000)

25.2.1 Letters of credit issued by commercial banks 2,983 2,775
25.2.2 Corporate guarantee issued on behalf of Unicol Limited. 138,000 138,000
26. TURNOVER - NET
Local Sales 2,857,555 2,966,831
Less: Sales tax / federal excise duty (103,397) (122,850)
Special excise duty (14,487) (20,310)
(117,884) (143,160)
2,739,671 2,823,671
=l 27. COST OF SALES
s Sugar cane cost 2,775,576 2,325,031
% Raw sugar consumed 217,549 =
2 Stores and spare parts consumed 95,341 64,391
2 Packing material and expenses 22,977 16,744
< Salaries, wages and other benefits 271 153,734 131,797
T Water, fuel and power 25,630 13,705
= Insurance 4,765 3,424
Repairs and maintenance 19,243 10,952
Vehicles expenses 10,034 7,824
Sugar handling expenses 1,709 1,018
Other expenses 8,622 5,545
Depreciation 4.1.1 35,918 25,400
Amortization 5.1 440 -
3,371,538 2,605,831
Sugar-in-process
- opening 2,794 1,693
- closing 9 (2,528) (2,794)
266 (1,101)
3,371,804 2,604,730
Less: - sale of molasses 27.2 220,475 152,332
- stock adjustment - (2,938)
- sale of bagasse 27.2 14,700 53,175
235,175 202,569
Cost of goods manufactured 3,136,629 2,402,161
Finished goods - opening 122,921 198,540
- closing 9 (884,253) (122,921)
(761,332) 75,619
2,375,297 2,477,780
27.1 This includes Rs. 13.36 million (2010: Rs.8.85 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.




28.

29.

30.

27.2 These figures are net off sales tax and special excise duty of Rs. Nil (2010 : Rs.4.60 million) in
respect of molasses and Rs.2.64 million (2010 : Rs. 9.19 million) in respect of bagasse.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.1 2,279 1,672

Insurance 2,229 2,703

Sugar dispatch expenses - 43

Forwarding expenses 692 472

Brokerage and commission 69 95

Other expenses 415

Depreciation 4.1.1 183

Amortization 5.1 73 -
5,940 4,985

28.1 This includes Rs. 0.201 million (2010: Rs. 0.068 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1 47,153 43,448
Directors' fee 460 160
Rent, rates and taxes 1,241 2,159
Communication expense 2,298 1,979
Conveyance and travelling 7,453 5,628
Printing and stationery 1,048 1,149
Entertainment 1,038 687
Vehicles expenses 1,785 3,133
Insurance 1,551 1,443
Repairs and maintenance 2,613 3,519
Subscription 1,510 504
Legal and professional charges 4,692 6,236
General expenses 731 486
Utilities 2,084 2,111
Depreciation 4.1.1 3,956 6,466
Amortization 5.1 220 -
79,833 79,108

29.1 This includes Rs. 8.43 million (2010: Rs. 7.38 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditors' remuneration 30.1 510 491
Workers' profit participation fund 22.1 6,738 7,952
Workers' welfare fund 22.1 2,561 3,022
Charity and donation 30.2 2,997 389
12,806 11,854

30.1 Auditors' Remuneration
Audit fee 285 265
Cost audit fee 125 105
Out of pocket expenses 100 121
510 491

30.2 None of the directors or their spouses had any inferest in the donees.

(o8
N
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31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

[(RUT0/00)]

Income from financial assets

Dividend income from a related party 810 -
Profit on PLS and deposit accounts with banks 678 855
Mark-up on provident fund balance 205 195
Mark-up on growers' loans 80 191
1,773 1,241
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of operating property, plant and equipment 4.2 443 23
Other
Miscellaneous 2,767 810
4,983 2,074
FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long-term financing 22,556 22,395
Mark-up on short-term borrowings 121,050 79,760
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 22.1.1 292 345
Bank charges 1,412 1,458
145,310 103,958

PROVISION FOR TAXATION

The assessments of the Company for and upto the tax year 2011 have been completed or deemed to be
assessed. In view of unabsorbed losses, the Company is only liable to pay minimum tax and final tax in
the current year, therefore, no numerical tax reconciliation is given.

EARNINGS PER SHARE- BASIC

Profit after taxation 137,714 84,299
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year 8,433,215 8,433,215
Earnings per share - basic (Rupees) 16.33 10.00 *

* restated

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company has exposed to the following financial risks from the use of financial instruments :

Market risk including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.
Credit risk

Liquidity risk.

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risk, the Company’s
objectives, policies and procedures for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management
of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Company risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The
Company overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.




The Company’s senior management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, financial instruments and
investment of excess liquidity. It is the company policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purpose
shall be undertaken.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized
below :

35.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices The Company has exposed to market risks such as interest rate risk and price risk

Financial instruments affected by market risk include short-term investments (available- for- sale), long
term financing and short-term borrowings.

a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the change in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk arises mainly
from future economic transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transaction in foreign
exchange

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate
due to change in the market interest rates. The Company interest rate risk arises from long-term and
short-term borrowings obtained with floating rates. All the borrowings of the Company are obtained
in functional currencies. Applicable interest rates of financial instruments are given in respective notes.

Change in interest rate by 2% may have a positive or negative impact of approximately Rs. 20.31
million (2010: Rs.13.86 million ) in profit & loss account before taxation. The analysis made based
on the assumption that all other variable remains constant.
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c¢) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of change in market prices ( other then those arising from interest rate risk). The Company
has exposed to other price risk like equity risk that arise from Company’s investment in listed securities
that are classified as available-for-sale investments. Listed securities are susceptible to market price
risk arising from uncertainties about future returns of the investment securities.

At the balance sheet date, the exposure to listed equity securities at fair value was Rs. 58.18 million
(2010: Rs.56.62 million). A decrease in 10% in the share price of the listed securities would have an
impact of approximately Rs.5.82 million on the equity or income depending whether or not the decline
is significant and prolonged. An increase of 10% in the share price of the listed securities would impact
equity in the similar amount but will not have an effect on income unless there is an impairment charge
associated with it.

35.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if counter parties to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. The Company does not have significant exposure in relation to
individual customers. Aging analysis of trade debts is disclosed in note no.10 of this financial statements.
The Company exposure to credit risk is minimal as the Company receives advance against sale of
goods to customers.




35.2.1

MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

35.3

Long term financing
Deferred liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Trade & other payables
Accrued mark-up

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows :

(Rupees in ‘000)

Long-term deposits 732 732
Trade debts 13,481 90,979
Advances 101,530 72,608
Short-term investments 58,180 56,616
Bank balances 14,439 29,942

188,362 250,877

Credit quality of financial assets

The credit policy of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates :

(Rupees in ‘000)

Trade debts

Customers with no default in the past one year 13,481 90,979
Advances

Counter parties without credit rating 101,530 72,608
Short-term investments

Counter parties without credit rating 58,180 56,616
Cash at bank

Al + 14,439 29,942
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligation as they
fall due.

The Company applies prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. As at balance
sheet date, the Company has unused credit facilities of Rs.1,094 million (2010 : Rs.1,037 million)

Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the following
reporting dates based on contractual undiscounted payments. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Total
(a+b)

Financial liabilities:

Less than One to Sub total Less than One to Sub total
one year five years (a) one year five years (b)
44,444 344,445 388,889 s s 388,889 133,334
- - - 108,104 108,104 108,104 105,558
475,032 475,032 - - - 475,032 161,878
- 619,290 619,290 619,290 347,536
32,309 32,309 32,309 14,843

519,476 344,445 863,921 651,599 108,104 759,703 1,623,624 763,149




Effective interest rates for the monetary financial assets and liabilities are mentioned in  the
respective notes to the financial statements.

35.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seftled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is

considered not significantly different from book value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analysed between those
whose fair value is based on:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (unobservable

inputs)
Financial assets measured at fair value fRupses 10 090,

30 September 2011
Investment at fair value (available-for-sale securities) [EIRE0] 58,180

30 September 2010

Investment at fair value (available-for-sale securities) ESIRAE) 56,616

35.5 Capital risk management
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The Company's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as going concern in order to provide returns for share holders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company is not subject
to any externally imposed Capital requirements.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.

The gearing ratios as at Sep. 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows

(Rupees in “000)

Total Long term debt 388,889 133,334
Share Capital 84,332 70,277
Reserves 411,367 311,318
Total Equity 495,699 381,595
Total Equity and Long term debt 884,588 514,929

Gearing ratio 43.96% 25.89%
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36.

37.

38'

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS & EXECUTIVES

Exg:]LiJ?ifve Directors Executives Exi?i;?ifve Directors Executives
Remuneration & bonus 14,675 18,461 7,150 14,175 17,711 9,540
Housing allowance 1,320 3,024 2,336 1,303 2,894 2,841
Utilities 250 629 519 250 604 631
Leave fare assistance 840 840 . 780 780 =
Retirement benefits 1,836 1,836 1,013 1,635 1,635 1,252

18,921 24,790 11,018 18,143 23,624 14,264

The Chief Executive, Directors and Executives are provided with the use of Company maintained cars and

are also provided with the residential telephone facility which is reimbursed at actual to the extent of their

entitlements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES :

Related parties comprise of related group companies, associated companies, directors and executives. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts
due from and to related parties, contribution to staff benefit funds, mark-up on loans, amount due fro
executives and remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in the relevant notes. Other material

(Rupees in ‘000)

transactions with related parties are given below :

Relationship Nature of Transaction

Group Companies Services received 3,307 2,473
Goods purchased 1,533 1,619
Good:s sold 247,574 203,299
Dividend received 810 -
Investment made 14,632 -
Dividend paid 4,619 6,997

Other related parties Insurance premium 1,765 1,609
Contribution fo staff provident 20,521 16,298

and gratuity funds

In addition, certain actual administrative expenses are being shared amongst the group companies.

RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS
38.1 Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective from the current financial year.

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standards or inferpretation:




Standard or Interpretation _ Effective dates
(accounting periods beginning on or after)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements- Amendments to

revise the way other comprehensive income is presented 01 July 2012
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures- Amendments

enhancing disclosure about transfers of financial assets. 01 July 2011
IAS 12 Income tax (Amendment) - Deferred Taxes: Recovery

of Underlying Assets 01 January 2012

IAS 19 Employee benefits - Amended Standards resulting from
the Post-Employment Benefits and Termination
Benefits projects 01 January 2013

IAS24  Related Party Disclosure (Revised) 01 January 2011

IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum Funding Requirement
(Amendment) 01 January 2011

IFRIC 15  Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

IFRIC 16  Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

IFRIC 17  Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers

The Company expects that the adoption of the above revision, amendments and inferpretations of the
standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial

application, except certain additional disclosures.

In addition to above amendments to various accounting standards have also been issued by the IASB. Such
improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2011. The
Compay expects that such improvements of the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's

financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan

Standard or Interpretation IASB Effeghye dates
(annual periods beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 01 January 2015
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 01 January 2013
IFRS11  Joint Arrangements 01 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities 01 January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 01 January 2013

N
w
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39.

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

No. of days mill operated 144 121
Crushing capacity per day (M.tons) 5,000 4,500
Total crushing capacity on the basis of no. of days (M.tons) 720,000 544,500
Actual crushing (M.tons) 509,204 455,129
Sugar production (M.tons) 52,993 48,202

The sugar production plant capacity is based on crushing sugar cane on daily basis and the sugar production
is dependent on certain factors which include sucrose recovery percentage. The short fall in actual crushing
is mainly on account of shortage of sugar cane.

40. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements have been authorized for issue on December 15, 2011 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

41. DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS
Subsequent to the year ended September 30, 2011, the Board of Directors has approved/ proposed the
following in its meeting held on December 15, 2011 for the approval of the members at the Annual Genaral
meeting.
Proposed cash dividend @ Re. 1 per share (2010:
@ Rs.1.50 per share) 8,433 10,542
Proposed bonus shares @ 15% (2010: 20%) 12,650 14,055

42, CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison.
Reclassifications have been made in note 27 to the financial statements & Cost audit fee that has been
transferred from administrative expenses to other operating expenses.

43. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless otherwise stated.

.-'.-.n.'
{ Agpreihe
P A
ASLAM FARUQUE TARIQ FARUQUE

Chief Executive Director




oattern of shoreho|d|ng

as at september 30, 2011

shareholders From held
1,023 100 22,555
372 ]O] 500 96,110
122 501 1000 92,221
148 1001 5000 366,426
35 5001 10000 262,246
5 10001 15000 60,452
3 15001 20000 54,991
2 20001 25000 47,634
2 25001 30000 53,755
1 35001 40000 35,503
1 85001 90000 85,857
1 95001 100000 95,016
1 105001 110000 109,648
1 170001 175000 170,900
1 200001 205000 201,228
1 215001 220000 216,212
2 230001 235000 464,962
1 340001 345000 343,233
1 505001 510000 509,864
1 565001 570000 568,713
1 1080001 1085000 1,082,310
1 3490001 3495000 3,493,380
1,726 8,433,216

categories of shareholders

as at september 30, 2011

Categories

Individuals

Financial Institutions
Insurance Company
Investment Companies
Charitable Trusts

Joint Stock Companies
Others

Number of

shareholders
1,678
19
1

3
4
3
18
1,726

Number of

shares held
1,575,898
2,113,953
216,212
852
15,027
3,706,195
805,079
8,433,216

0.2675
1.1397
1.0935
4.3450
3.1097
0.7168
0.6521
0.5648
0.6374
0.4210
1.0181
1.1267
1.3002
2.0265
2.3861
2.5638
55135
4.0700
6.0459
6.7437
12.8339
41.4241
100.0000

%

18.6868
25.0670
2.5638
0.0101
0.1782
43.9476
9.5465
100.0000

o
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MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD

oattern of shareholding

as at september 30, 2011

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholders' Category Shares held
Associated companies

Faruque (Private) Limited 3,493,380
Greaves Pakistan (Private) Limited 201,228
Government Institutions

National Bank of Pakistan (Trustee of NIT) 1,082,310
Investment Corporation of Pakistan (ICP) 464
Directors and Chief Executive and their spouses

Mr. Mahmood Faruque 109,648
Mrs. Chaman Faruque W/o Mr. Mahmood Faruque 13,723
Mr. Mohammed Faruque 1
Mr. Aslam Faruque 6,270
Mr. Akbarali Pesnani 25,885
Mr. Arif Faruque 18,600
Mr. Tariq Faruque 8,707
Mr. Taufique Habib 1,200
Executives -
Banks, Development Financial 1,248,243
Institutions, Non-banking Finance

Institutions, Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest

Faruque (Private) Limited 3,493,380

National Bank of Pakistan (Trustee of NIT)

1,082,310




MIRPURKHAS SUGAR MILLS LTD ]l:
@ 47t Annual General Meeting pro><y om

2011

IMPORTANT _ _ L
Instrument of Proxy will not be considered as Registered Folio/ Participant's
valid unless it is deposited or received at the ID No. & A/c No

Company'’s Registered Office at Modern Motors
House, Beaumont Road, Karachi-Z75530 not
later than 48 hours before the time of holding No. of Shares held
the meeting.

|/ We

of

being member of Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited, hereby appoint

of

another member of the Company as my / our proxy to attend & vote for me / us and on my / our behalf
at the 47" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, January 31, 2012 at 03:00
p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

WITNESSES:

1. Signature Signature of Plgcse affix
Name Shareholder g;;er:;e
Address

CNIC or Passport No

2. Signature

Name
Address

CNIC or Passport No

Note: SECP’s Circular of January 26, 2000, is on the reverse side of this form.




Circular

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Sub : GU

STATE LIFE BUILDING # 7, BLUE AREA, ISLAMABAD

Islamabad, January 26, 2000.

Circular No.1 of 2000

IDELINES FOR ATTENDING GENERAL MEETINGS AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as “book entry security”on the Central

Depository

System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has come to the

notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant documents in the
matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes of attending the general
meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The issue has been examined and pending the further
instructions to be issued in this regard the following guidelines for the convenience of the listed companies
and the beneficial owners are laid down :

A.  Attending of meeting in person by account holders and/or sub-account holders and persons

whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded to CDS :

(1)

(2)

(3)

The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per regulation # 12.3.5
of the CDC Regulations.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are up loaded as per the regulations,
shall authenticate his identity by showing his orignal National Identity Card (NIC) or original
Passport at the time of attending the meeting.

In case of Corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution /power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies :

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and NIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of NIC or the Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the Proxy Form.

The proxy shall produce his orignal NIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

In case of Corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted alongwith Proxy Form to the Company.

sd.
(M. Javed Panni)
Chief (Coordination)
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GIULAM FARLEAUE
RO

Ragistered Office

Modern Molors House
Beaumaont Road
Karachi-75530 Pokistan

UAN: +92-21-111-354-111
Fax: +97 - 21- 354688036
Wab: www.glg.com.pk
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